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UNlTED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
U.S .. iOISTR.!CT CQ·U~"; 

WIESlTeR.~ 0!51m.cr OF ~C 
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA 

CHARLOTTE DTvtSION 

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING 
COMMISSION, 

Plaillti~ 

v. 

PMC STRATEGY, LLC, MICHAEL 
HUDSPETH, and TIMOTHY BAILEY, 

Defendants. 
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COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, CIVIL MONETARY 
PENALTIES, AND OTHER EOUIT ABJ.~E RELIE~ 

I 
I 

Plaintiff U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("Commission") a.lleges as 

follows: 

L SUMl\fARY 
I 

1. From at least June 30, 2008 through the present ("relevant pehod"), Defendant 

PMC Strategy, LLC ("PMC"), through its principals and controlling persoJ, Michael Hudspeth 
I 

C'Hudspeth") and Timothy Bailey C'Bailey'~), and Hudspeth and Bailey, individually and jn their 
I 

capacity as officers, employees, and agents of'PMC, (collectively "Defendadts"), fraudulently 
I 
I 

solicited approximately $669,000 from members of the general public ("pool participants") by 

advis.ing i.bem, that among other things, their funds would be pooled togethJ in the name of 

P:v!C and used to trade off-exchange foreign currency contracts ("forex"). Jather than invest all 
I 
I 

FEB 09 2011 13:07 

I 

I 
7042270248 ;:::»AGE.01 



02/09/2011 12:45 7042270248 US ATTORNEY OFFICE PAGE 02/27 

.Pool participant funds in forex, however, Defendants only deposited approximately $497t000 of 

the funds into PMC's forex trading accounts at Forex Capital Markets J.J ... C ("FXCM'~) and MB 

Trading Futures ("MBT"), both registered futures commission merchants ("FCMs"). The 

t·emaining $171,000 remained in PMC's Bani<: of Alnerica ('<BOA") account. 

2. Fl'om July 2008 through April 2010, Defendants suffered forcx trading losses of 

approximately $300,000. During approximately the satne time period: Defendants withdrew 

from the trading accounts funds totaling approxnnately $151,000. Dcfend~11s used these funds, 

as well as the $171,000 in tho BOA account, to remit approximately $239,000 to pool 

participants as purported monthly ttacling profits; des,Pite suffering trading losses in 15 of the 22 

months and being net negative from October 2008 onward. Defendants, therefore, were 

operating a Ponzi scheme~ Defendants also misappropriated approxhnate]y $128,000 for thejr 

own petson.al use. 

3. As a result of the conduct described above and the further conduct described 

herein, Defendants have engaged, are engagh1g, or are about to engage in acts and practices in 

violation of c~ain anti .. fraud provisions of the Commodity Exchange Act (the "Act"). 7 U.S.C. 

§§ 1 et seq .. (2006), as amended by the Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008, Pub. L. No. 

110-246, TitleXllJ (the CFTCRcauthorizationActof2008 (''CRA")), §§ 13101-:3204~ 122 

Stat. 1651 (enacted .Tune 18~ 2008). Hudspeth and Bailey, as agents, employees or officers of 

PMC, committed the acts and omissions described herein within the course and scope of their 

employment, age11cy or office with PMC; therefore, PMC is liable under Section 2(a)(l)(B) of 

the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S. C. § 2(a)(l)(B), and Commission Regulation ("Regulation") 1.2, 17 

C.F.R § 1.2 (2011), fol' violations of the Act, as amended by the CRA, committed by Hudspeth 

and Bailey. 
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4. Hudspeth and Bailey ate liable under Section 13(b) of the Act, to be codified at 7 

U.S. C.§ 13c(b), as controlling persons ofPMC, for PMC's violations of the Act, as ronended by the 

CRA, because they failed to act in good faith or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly~ the acts 

constituting the violations. 

5. Accordjngly, pursuant to Section 6c ofthe Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l, and 

Section 2(c)(2) of the Act as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2), the 

Commission brings this action to enjoin Defendants' unla'Wful acts and practices> to compel their 

complianec with the Act, as amended by the CRA, and to further enjoin Defendants from engaging in 

certain commodity and forex-related activity. In addition, the Commission seeks civil monetary 

penalties and re1nedial ancillary relief, including, but not limited to, 1Incling and registration bans, 

resti.nttio~ disgorgement, rescission. pre- and post-judgment interest, and such other relief as the 

Court may deem necessary and appropriate. 

6. Unless restrained an~ enjoined by this Court, Defendants are likely to continue to 

engage in the acts and practices alJeged in this Complaint and similar acts and practices, as more fully 

described below. 

II. .JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7. Sectio11 6c(a) of the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S. C. § 13a-l, authorizes the 

Commission to seek il1junctive relief in district comt against any person whenever it shall appear to 

the Commission that such person has engaged~ is engaging, or is about to engage in any act or practice 

constituting a violation of the Act or any rule, regulation, or order the.retmder. 

8. The Commission has jurisdiction over the conduct and transactions at issue in this 

case pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l, and Section 2(c)(2) of 

the Act, as am.ended by the CR.}\, to be codified nt 7 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2). 
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9. Venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Section 6c(e) of the Act, to be 

codified at 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l(e) because Defendants are found, inhabjt, reside andlor transact 

business in the Weste111 District of North Carolina, and certain of the transactions, acts, practices, 

and courses of business alleged to have violated the Act, as amended by the CRA, occurred, arc 

occun-ing, and/or are about to occ\U' within this Distr.ict. 

III. PARTIES 

10. Plaintiff Commodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent federal 

regulatory agency that is charged by Ccngl'ess ·with the administration and enforcement of the 

Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq., as amended by the CRA, and the Regulations 

promulgated thereundel', 17 C.F.R. §§ 1.1 et seq. (2011). The Co1nmission maintains its principal 

office at Three Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st StreetNW, \Vashington, D.C. 20581. 

11. Defendant PMC.Strategy, LLC was incorporated on .Tune 18, 200R in North 

Cru·olina as a member-managed LLC. Although its principal p1acc of business is listed at 1829 

Dickerson Blvd., Suite 114, ~1om·oe~ North Carolina, 2811 0, that address is actcally the loca1ion 

of an UPS stol'e. PMC, which has never been registered in any capacity with the Commission, is 

engaged in the business of soliciting and accepting funds from pool participants for the purpose 

of entering into margined or leveraged agreements, contracts or transactions in forex on behalf of 

PMC's pool participants. 

12. Defendant Michael Hudspeth is an inco1porator, officer, and director ofPMC 

and resides in Statesville, North Carolina. Hudspeth solicited and interacted with pool 

participants and had control over fimds deposited v..'ith P!v:IC. Hudspeth has never been 

registered in any capacity with the Corntnission. 

13. Defendant Timothy Bailey is an incorporator, officer, and director ofPMC and 
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resides in Monroe, North Carolina. Bailey traded PMC's forex accounts and had. control over 

funds deposited with PMC. Bailey is also the pastor at Mt. Olive AME Zion Church in Monroe, 

North Carolina. Bailey has never been registered in any capacity with the Conunission. 

IV. FACTS 

Defendants' Fraudulent Scheme 

14. Beginning in June 2008: Defendants fraudulently solicited at least 20 individuals 

and entities for the purported purpose of trading a pooled investment operated and managed by 

Defendants in connection with forex. 

15. To induce prospective pool participants to trade forex, Hudspeth advised them in 

June 2008 that he had been in the i11vestment business for app1·oximately 20 years: and that he 

had just started a new company, PMC, with two traders, Timothy Bailey and Sam Watkins. 

16. Hudspeth advised prospective pool participants that PMC had returned $160,000 

in profits within the six 1nonths prior to June 2008 by successfully trading forex. 

17. Hudspeth also advised pro~pective pool participants that only two percent of their 

money was to be used to trade forex, and therefore, only two percent of a p1·ospective pool 

participant's funds was ever at risk. 

18. Pl'ospective pool participants were told by Hudspeth that PMC operated on a 

50/50 compensation/interest agreement, based on the monthly gross return on investment 

("ROI''). Each pool participant would receive a monthly check representing 50 percent of the 

profits m.ade for each pool participant that month. by forex trading. 

19. In order to allay any potential concerns regarding the risks assodatcd with trading 

forex, Hudspeth informed prospective pool participants that they would be able to redee1n the 

amount of their initial investment within 30 days of notice. He also told prospective pool 
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participants that PMC is a family club so everyone can make good money and that Defendants 

are not in the business to rip anyone off. 

20. Most of the above representations made by Hudspeth wet·c false. 

21. First, PMC was not incorporated until .Tune 18,2008 and engaged in no forcx 

trading until July 2008. Further, while PMC's traders, Bailey and Sam Watkins did trade for 

themselves dul'ing January through June 2008~ their trading resulted in consistent net losses. 

22. Second, Defendants consistently put more than two percent of pool participant 

funds at risk. 

23. Thir.d, as descr.ibed in more detail below, monthly checks received by pool 

pmticipants were not calculated usjng the ROT formula but rather, were part of Defendants' 

Ponzi scheme. In fact, pool participants subsequently invested additional fllnds based on the 

sizable purp01ted monthly profit checks they received f-rom PMC. 

24. Fourth, despite pool particip~ts having ghren PMC the required 30 day 

redemption notice, PMC has steadfastly refused to return any funds to pool pruticipants in 

accordance with such redemption requests. 

25. In January 2009, Hudspeth contacted pool participants to notify them of a new 

PAGE 06/27 

program offered by PMC. New computer software which PMC had pul'chased would guarantee 

a five .Percent per month ROI, but required a minimum of$100,000 to participate. Based on the 

purported success ofPMC's previous trading, pool participants invested additional funds into the 

new progt·am.. 

26. Upon infonnation and belief: as recently as Nove1nber, 2010, Defendants are still 

trying to solicit funds from both pool participants and prospective pool participa1.ts. 

6 
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Pool Participant Funds and Forex Trading 

27. In total, ·Defendants received approximately $669,000 :fi·o1n pool p~dcipa'lts by 

check and 'Wire transfer payable to PMC for purposes of trading forex. Ofthls arnount, 

Defendants deposited $497:-000 into PMC trading accounts at FXCM a11d MBT. The remajning 

$171,000 was deposited into PMC's BOA account. 

28. In the trading accounts at FXCM and MBT, Defendants sustained losses in J 5 of 

the 22 months they traded pool participant 1noney, losing approximately $300,000. They were 

overall net negative from October 2008 onward. 

29. Of the remai.nU1g approximately $197,000 in the FXCM and lV:lBT accounts, 

Defendants withdrew approximately $151,000 and deposited these funds into the BOA account. The 

remaining $46,000 was transferred to an offshore forex trading account 

30. Defendants used the BOA account to pay purported monthly profits to PMC pool 

participants, to finance PMC's ongoing operations and to pay PMC's principals. 

31. In total, Defendants misappropriated approximately $128,000 in pool participant 

funds for their own personal use. 

Defendants Concealed Trading Losses With False Statements 

32. Defendants, through false representations and statements concealed their 

unsuccessfultt·ading and their on-going fraud by sending false statements to pool participants. 

33. Beginning in at least July 2008 and continuing throughApri12010, Def-endants sent 

purported profit checks to pool participants each monL}}, when in fact, actual forex tracling by 

Defendants during this period resulted. in net monthly losses more thmi 66% of the time. 

34. For example, three pool participants received a check for October 2008 trading 

profits in the amount of $1,000 when Defendants' actual for.ex trading that month resulted in total 
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net losses of$195,585.98. Pool participants were not informed of the losses for that month or 

any other month. 

35. In February 2010, Defendants stopped sending profit checks to pool pro'ticipants. 

36. When the pool participants demanded explanations a11d asked for retmn of their 

initial investment, Hudspeth, Bailey and Watkins explained that PMC could not return their 

funds because if it did, every PMC pool participant would lose theit investment. 

37. When pool participants demanded to see FMC's business records to verify PMC's 

assettion, PM C refused. Defendants sent an email to pool participants on September 1, 20 1 0 

infonning them that PMC's accou.Tltant advised them agamst doing so because PMC \vas a 

private company. In the same email, however~ Defendants adttJ.itted that PMC had sustained a 

large six-figure loss in 2009. 

PAGE 08/27 

3 8. At all releva11t tUnes, Hudspeth and Bailey were signatories on PMC's banking account 

and therefore had knowledge ofPMC's :financial issues. 

39. .Further, .Bailey drafted e-mails indicating the percentage of total ROI mid--month 

profits and Hudspeth sent the e-maHs to at least one pool pa'rticipant. These e .. mails misrepresented 

the actual forex trading results. Actual trades ·were rdlcctcd nowhere on the e-mails and the e-mails 

did not indicate where pool participant money was being held or traded. 

Forex Transactions Entered into on Behalf ofPMC's Pool Participants 

40. Neither Defendants nor the FCMs that were countexparties to the forex transactions 

entered into and /ox contemplated by Defendants and the pool participants were financiat il1stitutions, 

registered broker dealers (or their associatE:d persons), insw·ance companies, bwl< holding companies 

or investment bank holding companies. 

8 

FEB 09 2011 13=08 7042270248 PAGE.08 



02/09/2011 12:45 7042270248 US ATTORNEY OFFICE PAGE 09/27 

41. Neither Defendants nor the pool participants who provided funds to the 

Defendants ~ere ueligible contract participants" as that term is defined in the Act. See Section 

la(l2)(A)(v) of the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § la(12 (an ueligiblc contl'act pat'ticipant," as 

relevant hel'e, is "a corporation ... that has total assets exceeding $1 0,000~000 ... '' or an 

individual with total assets in excess of (i) $10 million, or (ii) $5 million and who enters the 

transaction ((to manage the risk associated witl1 an a.~set ow11ed or liability incuncd, or. 

reasonably likely to be owned or incurred, by the individual''). 

42. Defendants traded foreign cu11ency on a margined or leveraged basis in the 

trading accounts containing poo] participants' funds. The foreign currency transactions 

conducted by Defendants neither resulted in delivery within two days nor created an enforceable 

obligation to deliver between a seller and buyer that had the ability to deliver and accept delivery, 

respectively, in connection with their lines of business. Rather~ these foreign currency contacts 

remained open from day to day and ultimately wcro offset withm1t anyone making or taking delive1y of 

actual currency (or facing an obligation to do so). 

Hudspeth and Bailey are Control Persons of PMC Str,.tegy, LLC 

43. At all material times, Hudspeth and Bailey were principals ofPMC and together were 

responsible for the corporation's acts. 

44. Hudspeth was responsible for soliciting and interacting with prospective pool 
\ 

participants and pool participants. He utilized false sales solicitations tactics to induce prospective 

pool participants to send money to PMC. Further, Hudspeth opened the trading account nt MBT on 

behalf ofPMC and, upon .iiL."'nnation and belief, had the authority and ability to examine the trading 

accounts at both :MJ3T and FXCM before he se11t out false profit checks to pool participants. Thus, 

Hudspeth knew, consciously avoided learning, or acted recldessly in failing to lean1 that the purported 

9 

FEB 09 2011 13:08 7042270248 ?AGE.09 



02/0S/2011 12:45 7042270248 US ATTORNEY OFFICE PAGE 10127 

montllly profit checks signed by himself, on behalf ofPMC, which were sent to pool participants as 

well as himself and Bailey, contained false inf'01mation. 

45. Bailey is PMC's Chief Executive Officer. He opened the trading accounts at FXCivf 

and was the only b:ader authorized to trade PMC' s accounts, and 'therefore, l<ne\v that PMC' s trading 

was unprofitable. Nevertheless, Bailey withdrew monthly sums from PMC's BOA account, to which 

he was not entitl.ed, which represented purported trading gains from Pl\lfC's trading. 

V. VIOLATIONS OF THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT 

COUNT ONE: 

Violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A) .. (C) of the Act, 
as amended by the CRA 

(Frnudnlent Solicitation, Misappropriation and False Statements) 

46. The allegations set f011'h in paragraphs 1 through 45 aJ:e re-alleged 

and incorporated herein by reference. 

47. Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, as amended by the CRA, to be 

codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C), make it unlawful 

for any person, in or in connection with an.y order to make, or the making of, any 
contract of sale of any commodity for future delivery, or other agree1nent, 
contract, or transaction subject to paragraphs (1) and (2) of section 5a(g): that is 
made, or to be made, for or on behalf of. or with, any other person, other than on 
or subject to the rules of a designated conu·act market- (A) to cheat or defraud or 
attempt to cheat or defraud the other person; (B) willfully to tnake or cause to be 
m.ade to the other perso11 any false report or statement or willfully to enter or 
cause to be entered for the other person any false record; (C) willfully to deceive 
or attempt to deceive the othe1· person by any means whatsoever in l'egarG. to any 
order or contract or the disposition or execution of any order or contt·act~ or in 
regard to any act of agency performed, with respect to any order or contact fo1· or, 
in the case of paragraph (2), with the other person. 

Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, as amended by the CRA, applies to the foreign cun·ency 

transactions, agreements or contracts offered by Defendants. See Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iv) of the 

Ac~ as amended by the CRA~ to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2)(C)(iv). 

10 

FEB 09 2011 13:08 7042270248 PAGE.10 



02/09/2011 12:45 7042270248 wS ATTORNEY OFFICE 

48. As set forth above~ fi:otn at lea..~t Jtme 2008 through tl1c present, in or in 

connection with foreign currency contracts, made) or to be made, for or on behalf of or with, 

other persons, Defendants cheated or defrauded or attempted to cheat o1· defraud pool 

participants or pt'ospective pool participants; willfully deceived or attempted to deceive pool 

participants ot· prospective pool participants by, among other things, knowingly (i) 

misappropriating pool participant funds that purpo11·edly wc1·e to be used to trade forcx; (ii) 

fraudulently soliciting pool participants and prospective pool participa?ts; (iii) issuing false 

profit checks, all in violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) of the Act, as amended by ~e 

CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A) and (C). 

49. As set forth above~ from at least June 18, 2008 through the present~ in or in 

PAGE 11/27 

connection with forcx contracts, made, or to be made, for o1· on behalf of ot with~ other persons, 

Defendants v-illfully made or caused to be made to the other person any false report or statement 

or willfully entered or caused to be entered for the other person any false record among other 

things, knowingly issuing false profit checks and false ROI e .. mails, all in violation of Section 

4b(a)(2)(B) of the Act, as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(B). 

SO. PMC, by and through its agents, including Hudspeth and Bailey, engaged in the acts 

and practices described above knowingly or with recldess disregard for the truth. 

51. Hudspeth controlled Pl\ifC, clirec1ly or indil'ectly, and did .not act in good faith or 

knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, PMC's conduct alleged in this Complaint; therefore, pursuant 

to Section 13(b) of the Ac~ to be codified at 7 U.S. C.§ 13c(b), I-Judspeth is liable for PMC's 

violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, as amended by the CRA, to be codified. at 7 U.S. C. 

§§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C). 

52. Bailey COtltrolled P!\1C, directly or indirectly, and. did not act in good faith or 
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knowingly induced, directly or indirectly~ PMCs conduct alleged in this Complaint; therefol'e~ pursuant 

to Section l 3(b) of the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S. C.§ 13c(b), Bailey is liable for PMC's violations 

of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 

6b(a)(2)(A)-(C). 

53. The foregoing acts, misrepresentations, omissions, and failures of Hudspeth and Bailey 

OCCUlTed mthln the scope of their employment~ office or agency with PMC; the.refore, P!v1C is liable 

for these acts, misrepresentations, omissions, and failw:es ptu'Suant to Sect; on 2(a)(l)(B) of the Act, to 

be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(l)(B) and Regulation 1.2, 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2010). 

54. Each act of m.isapprop1iati.on, misrepresentation or omissio11 of material factc:;, and 

making or causing to be tnade a false report or statement, including but not limited to those 

specifically alleged herein, is alleged as a separate and distinct violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of 

the Act, as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A}-(C). 

VI. RELIEF BEOUESTED 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Cowt, as authori.'!ed by Section 

6c of the Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1, and pursuant to its own equitable povvcrs, enter: 

a) An order finding that Defendants violated Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, as 

amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C); 

b) An order ofpennanent il~tmctlon prohibiting Defendants and any of their agents, servants. 

employees, assigns, attorneys, and persons in active concert or participation "~th any Defendant, 

including any successor thereof, from engaging. directly or indirectly: 

(i) in conduct' in violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)·(C) of the Act, as amended by the 

CRA, and as amended by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Rcfo1m and Conswncr Protection 
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Act of2010 ("Dodd-Frank Act"), Pub. L. No. 111-203, Title VII (the Wall Street 

Transparency and Accountability Act of2010), §§701-774, 124 Stat. 1376 (enacted July 

21, 2010), to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C); 

(ii) trading on or subject to the rules of any registered entity (as that tcnn is dcfmed in 

Section la of the Act, as am.ended by the CRA and Dodd-Frank Act, to be codified at 7 

U.S. C. § la); 

PAGE 13/27 

(iii) entering into any transactions involving commodity futures, options on 

commodity futures~ commodity options (as that tenn is defi11ed ill Regulation 3 2.1 (b)( 1 ), 17 

C.F.R. § 32.1(b)(l) (20 10)) ("cmnmodity options"), and/or fo1·eign cu1rency (as described in 

Sections 2( c )(2)(B) and 2( c )(2)(C)(i) of the Act as amended by the CRA and the Dodd-Frank 

Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(B) at1d 2(c)(2)(C)(i)) (l'forex con1racts") for their own 

personal account or for any accotmt in which they have a direct or indirect interest; 

(iv) having any commodity futures, options on conunodity futures, commodity 

options, and/or forex contracts traded on their behalf; 

(v) controlling or directing the trading f"Or or on behalf of any other person or entity; 

whether by power of attorney or otherwise,· in any account involving corrunodity futures, 

options on commodity futures, commodity options, and/or forcx contracts; 

(vi) soliciting, receiving, or accepting any funds from any person for the puipose of 

purchasing or selling any commodity futures, options on conunodity futures, comJnodity 

options, and/or forex contracts; 

(vii) applying for registration or claiming exemption from registration. with the 

Co1nmission in any capacity, attd engaging in any activity requil'ing such registration or 

exemption f-rom registration with the Conunission, except as provided for in Regulation 
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4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2010); and 

(viii) acting as a principal (as that term is defined in Regulation 3.1 (a), 17 

C.F.R. § 3.l(a) (2010)), agent or any other offlce.r or employee of any person registered, 

exempted from. registration or required to be registered with the CFTC except as provided 

for in Regulation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9). 

c) An order directing Defendants, as well as any successors to any Defendant, to 

disgor.ge, pursuant to such procedure as the Court may order, all benefits received from the acts 

ot· practices which constitute violations of the Act, as amended by the CRA, as described herein, 

and. pre- and post .. judgment interest thereon from the date of such violations; 

d) An order directing Defendants to make full restitution to every person or entity 

whose funds Defendants received or caused another person or entity to receive as a result of acts 

and practices that constituted violations of the Act, as amended by the CRA, as described hel'ein, 

and pre- and post-judgment interest thereon from lhe date of such yjolati.ons; 

e) An order directing each Defendant to pay a civil monetary penalty for each 

violation of the Act, as amended by the CRA, described herein, plus post-judgn1ent interest, in 

the amount of the higher of: 1) $140~000 for each violation of the Act, as amended by the CRA~ 

committed on or after Octobel' 23, 2008; 2) $130,000 fol' each violation of the Act, as amended 

by the CRA, conunitted between June 18) 2008 and October 23, 2008; or 3) triple the monetary 

gain to the Defendants for each violation of the Act, as ame.nded by the CRA, described herein, 

plus post-judgment interest: 

f) An order directing Defendants and any successors thereof, to rescindt pursuant to 

such procedures as the Court inay order~ all contracts and agreements, whcthe.r implied or 

express, entered into between them and any of the customers whose funds were received by them 
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as a result of the acts and practices which constituted violations of the Act, as amended by the 

CRA, a., described herein; 

g) An order requiring Defendants to pay costs and fees as permitted by 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1920 and 2412(a)(2) (2006); a11d 

h) Such other and further relief as ihe Court deems proper. 

February!)_, 2011 

Respectfully Submitted: 
Attorneys for PJaintiff 
U.S. Commodity Futw:es Trading Commission 
Division of Enforcement 
Three Lafayette Centre 
1151 2 1 'It Street NW 
Waslrington, DC 20581 

Bug· Vroustouris 
Senior Trial Attorney 
VA BarNo. 46381 
(202) 418-5268 
cvroustouris@c.ftc.gov 

Daniel C. Jordan 
Chief Trial Attorney 
VA Bar No. 36382 
(202) 418-5339 
dj ordan@cftc. gov 

Richard Glaser 
Associate Directo1· 
NY BarNo. 8652 
(202) 418-5358 
rglaser@cflc. gov 
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